
 

 

  
 

PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, May 27, 2020 
7:00 PM 

Remote Meeting 
 

Due to Mecklenburg County’s COVID-19 Stay at Home Order, the regular meeting of the Matthews 
Planning Board will be conducted remotely using the Zoom virtual meeting platform. The Town of 
Matthews is committed to transparency and robust public participation during these challenging 

times. While the public is not permitted to gather in person to participate in this meeting, there are 
options to participate remotely. Please visit www.matthewsnc.gov and navigate to the Town calendar 

for information on how to view the meeting. You may also call 704-708-1235 for assistance.  
 
 

I.       CALL TO ORDER 

  

II.       APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 25, 2020 

 
III.     Public Improvement Variance, PCM Holdings, College Street 

 
IV.   Presentation on Matthews Sub Area Travel Demand and Land Use Model 

 

           V.    Administrative Amendment – Quik Trip, 10621 Monroe Road, request to modify façade                                                 
 
 
           VI.  Administrative Amendment – Matthews United Methodist, request to add columbarium to               
                 site plan. 
 

 

   
 
 
 

 
 
  

 
 
 

http://www.matthewsnc.gov/


 
 
 

 

 
MEMO 
 
TO:                  Planning Board Members 
FROM:            Jay Camp 
DATE:             May 20, 2020 
RE:                 May 27th Regular Planning Board Meeting 
 
 
Greetings Everyone!  
 
It has been several months since we last met so perhaps introductions will be needed next week? I hope that 
you all are doing well. We have numerous items set for review next week and will of course be utilizing the 
Zoom platform for our meeting. Town Board has used Zoom for several meetings and it has been a smooth 
transition thus far. We will likely plan a test run the day before to ensure that everyone is acquainted with the 
software and how the meeting will run. Also, David Wieser has rotated off and is now a member of the Board 
of Adjustment. A new chair will need to be selected now or in the near future when new members rotate on. 
We have 3 vacancies to fill and hope to have candidates meet with the Town Board next month. That process 
has been delayed due to Covid-19. Below is a brief summary of the items on our agenda:   
 
 
Public Improvement Variance, College Street – A Public Improvement Variance is sought by the property 
owner of a parcel that fronts partially on S. Ames Street and primarily on the unopened College Street right-of-
way. The developer intends to construct four homes on previously platted lots and must build a portion of 
College Street for access. The variance request, which is described in detail in Mary Jo’s attached memo, 
would allow for a street cross section similar to adjacent existing streets. 
 
 
Matthews Sub Area Travel Demand and Land Use Model – Matthews Transportation Planner Dana 
Stoogenke will provide a summary of work to create the first Matthews specific travel demand and land use 
model for the Town. The Town aims to develop the two Models to examine the impacts of transportation and 
land use planning in current and future years. 
 
 
Administrative Amendment  – QuikTrip – An Administrative Amendment to modify a portion of the façade 
on the QuikTrip store at 10621 Monroe Road is requested. The application calls for replacement of tile 
accents with an EIFS (synthetic stucco) finish. Please review the attached memo from Rob Will for a complete 
summary of the request. 
 
Administrative Amendment – Columbarium at Matthews United Methodist- The request would allow for 
the creation of a Columbarium on the church campus. The attached memo provides greater detail regarding 
the request.   



MINUTES 
PLANNING BOARD 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2020 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Chairman David Wieser; Vice-Chairman Kerry Lamson; Members Mike Foster, Natasha Edwards, 

Jana Reeve, and Mike Rowan; Alternate Member Jonathan Clayton; Acting Town Attorney Craig 
Buie; Senior Planner Mary Jo Gollnitz; Senior Administrative Specialist/Deputy Town Clerk Shana 
Robertson. 

 
ABSENT:  Alternate Member Scott Query; Youth Voice Matheus Sadovsky. 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman David Wieser called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 
Natasha Edwards motioned to appoint Alternate Member Jonathan Clayton as a voting member for the February 
25, 2020 Planning Board meeting. The motion was seconded by Mike Foster and unanimously approved 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
  
Mike Rowan motioned to approve the minutes from the January 28, 2020 Planning Board meeting as presented. 
Jonathan Clayton seconded the motioned and it was unanimously approved.  
 
TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION 2019-705 – APC Towers, LLC - Request to increase maximum stealth 
tower height in the Industrial District when adjacent to residential zoning 
 
Senior Planner Mary Jo Gollnitz said that there had been no updates since the Public Hearing to report. Ms. Gollnitz 
reviewed the request to increase the height of stealth towers in the I-1 (Light Industrial) use districts that are adjacent 
to residential zoned areas. The applicant was requesting an increase in height from 80 feet to 120 feet. Ms. Gollnitz 
said that this was for a stealth tower application. Stealth towers were defined as a hidden tower or a type of tree 
structure. Ms. Gollnitz reminded the Planning Board members that this was one of two applications that the applicant 
had submitted. The first being the text amendment and the second was the rezoning that would apply to the text 
amendment.  
 
Kerry Lamson asked if R/I districts were the only other zoning in Matthews that had similar language. Ms. Gollnitz 
said that was correct and reviewed the R/I and proposed I-1 footnote three in Section 155.506.41.C.5 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO).  That note statswhen utilizing a stealth tower application, the above given height 
limits may be increased up to an additional 40 feet at the time of initial construction. She stressed that the 40 foot 
increase in height would have to be done when the tower is first constructed.  
 
Mr. Lamson clarified that if the text change was approved, it would apply to all current and future I-1 zoned properties. 
Ms. Gollnitz said that was correct and reviewed some of the current I-1 zoned properties around town. 
 
Ms. Edwards asked if the tower companies would need to seek approval before installation. Ms. Gollnitz said that 
they would need to come to the Town Board to have the site plan reviewed and approved.  
 
Mr. Rowan asked if they would need to apply for additional 40 feet. Ms. Gollnitz said that 80 was currently permitted 
and if they wanted to increase to 120 feet on the initial installation construction, the application would have to go 
before the Board of Commissioners.   
 
Mr. Foster asked if it would still be at the discretion of Board. Ms. Gollnitz said that if the application met the 
requirements of the UDO then the application would have to be approved.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked to review the foot notes again and further expand on the meaning. Ms. Gollnitz reviewed the foot 
notes and said that this was only for a stealth application that was adjacent to residentially zoned properties. The 80 



Planning Board Minutes 
February 25, 2020 

 
 

 2 

feet was allowed but could be increased to 120 feet in height if done so at the time of initial construction.  Mr. Lamson 
asked what was footnoted for I-1 zoning currently.  Ms. Gollnitz said that footnote one was what was currently 
allowed. Mr. Lamson clarified that currently the tower could be installed at 80 feet in height and could be increased 
in 20 foot increments up to 40 additional fee.  Ms. Gollnitz said that was only when there were existing nonresidential 
structures.   
 
Mr. Rowan asked how many properties would be affected by the text amendment. Ms. Gollnitz said that any current 
or future I-1 zoning would be affected. Ms. Gollnitz reviewed the zoning map and said that most I-1 properties were 
developed but that did not mean that they could not be redeveloped.   
 
Johnston Allison & Hord, PA Attorney Susanne Todd said she was representing the applicant APC towers. Ms. Todd 
reviewed the request for an additional 40 feet only when adjacent to residentially zoned properties. Ms. Todd added 
that the text amendment would impact seven parcels adding that the impact did not account for properties that were 
already conditionally zoned.   
 
Mr. Foster clarified that if the text amendment was approved, a tower company could build a structure that was 120 
feet in height with an automatic approval from Town Council.  Ms. Gollnitz said that the text basically said that the 
site plan would be reviewed and approved by the Board and was highly unlikely to be disapproved because it was 
listed as an approved use. Mr. Foster said that there would have to be a compelling reason to deny and Ms. Gollnitz 
said that was correct.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked if the text amendment was not approved, could the applicant ask for a variance. Ms. Gollnitz said 
that variances for uses were not allowed.   
 
Mr. Lamson inquired as to the lowest point on the tower where technology could be placed.  APC Towers Senior 
Director of Development Mike Gallagher said that the tree canopy was at about 65 feet and placement could be 
placed at the 75 foot mark. Mr. Lamson asked if the tree canopy was higher would it limit or block the signal.  Mr.  
Gallagher said that it would not block the signal completely but it would shrink the cell coverage area.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked if there was other technology that could be used. Mr. Gallagher said that other options were not 
cost effective.  Scott Brantley with Tower Engineering said that the other option was called DAS systems and they 
were strictly used for high density areas.   
 
Mr. Rowan asked about technology abandonment. Ms. Gollnitz said that there was an abandonment policy within 
the UDO and a process for what would need to be done in such a case.  Mr. Lamson asked how the Town would 
know if a tower was abandoned and how it was defined in Town code.  Mr. Gallagher said that they have to be listed 
with the FCC.  
 
Mr. Lamson said that he was not comfortable with approving a blanket text for all I-1 zoning that was adjacent to 
residential. Mr. Rowan said that there was a balance between ascetics and the community’s need of technology. 
The Board continued discussions on the height of towers adjacent to residential districts and the technology needs 
of the citizens.  
 
Ms. Edwards asked if the tower design would be reviewed before construction. Ms. Gollnitz said that it would be 
reviewed by the Town.  
 
Mr. Foster motioned that Text Amendment Application 2019-705, Communication Tower Height Allowance, be 
recommended for approval as currently amended and had been found to be consistent with the Matthews Land Use 
Plan as it allows for the integration of a stealth communication tower on any industrially zoned site that will be a 
service to the community. The request was found to be reasonable because there are limited locations where a 
stealth tower can currently be located within the Town of Matthews and will require colocation of additional antennae. 
Ms. Reeve seconded the motion and it passed six to one with Mr. Lamson in opposition.  

 
ZONING APPLICATION 2019-708 – Couchell Family Properties, 2447 East John Street – I-1 (CD) Change of 
Conditions to allow for the placement of a stealth cell tower  
 



Planning Board Minutes 
February 25, 2020 

 
 

 3 

 
Ms. Gollnitz said that there were no updates to the site plan or the zoning request since the Public Hearing. Ms. 
Gollnitz reviewed the property location, current site plan, tower design, and the vegetation survey with the Planning 
Board members.  Ms. Gollnitz said that the applicant would meet the landscaping and fencing requirements. There 
will be access to the property by a gravel drive.  Ms. Gollnitz said that the mono pine would be 118 feet tall with a 
two foot tall lighting rod.  
 
Mr. Foster asked if there were residential homes around the structure and Ms. Gollnitz reviewed the single-family 
homes in the area and reminded the Board that the property did not have to have a house on it to be zoned 
residential and did not need to be within the Town limits.   
 
Mr. Wieser asked about tree save requirements.  Ms. Gollnitz said that they would meet the tree save and the tree 
save area was located directly behind the structure and buffered the property line. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked if this type of application was defined in the Land Use Plan.  Ms. Gollnitz said that cell towers 
was not a consideration within the Land Use Plan.  
  
Mr. Rowan asked about the additional plantings around the structure. Ms. Gollnitz said that where the fence was 
proposed around the tower, landscaping was required and would be reviewed by staff.  
 
Ms. Reeve motioned that Zoning Application 2019-708, Couchell Family Properties, I-1 (CD) Change in Conditions, 
be recommended for approval.  The request was found to be consistent with the Matthews Land Use Plan because 
it allows for a stealth communication tower on any industrially zoned site that will be a service to the neighboring 
properties. It is reasonable because the property is underdeveloped and is at the back of property away from the 
public realm.  Mr. Rowan seconded the motion and it passed six to one with Mr. Lamson in opposition. 
 
 
REQUEST FOR REAPPLICATION: Home Depot, 1837 Matthews Township Parkway  
 
Ms. Gollnitz said that in December of 2019, the Town Board of Commissioners viewed and denied the change of 
condition request for Home Depot, located at 1837 Matthews Township Parkway.  The Home depot has requested 
a waiver of the one year waiting period requirement to resubmit.  Ms. Gollnitz said that the applicant has worked 
with staff to reduce the area for the outdoor storage and display of their large rental equipment. The applicant also 
sited that the change of Commissioners warranted a change in circumstances. Ms. Gollnitz said that the applicant 
had supplied a general site plan but review of the changes was unnecessary until a waiver was granted.  The 
Planning Board needed to make a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners and Council would have the 
final vote on the requested waiver.  
 
Mr. Foster clarified that they were not reviewing the site plan but felt that it needed to be taken into consideration to 
warrant substantial changes. Ms. Gollnitz said that the UDO required substantial changes or change in circumstance. 
Mr. Foster said that he reviewed the plan and did not feel the changes were substantial. He added that the plan 
seemed similar to what was presented in December. Mr. Foster said that nothing was removed after the denial of 
the initial application.  
 
Adam Essink of Kimley Horn represented Home Depot.  He said that the applicant had some confusion between the 
corporate office and the local management staff. Mr. Essink said that he recently learned of mulch also being placed 
on the site and planned to speak to the applicant about the issue.  Mr. Essink said the biggest concern during the 
initial rezoning was the aesthetics and screening. 
 
Mr. Wieser said that he agreed with Mr. Foster and he also did not feel that there were substantial changes made to 
the site.  Mr. Wieser asked if the applicant was planning on making additional changes. Mr. Essink said they were 
willing to negotiate site improvements with fence or planting screening, but those had not been detailed out at this 
point.  
 
Mr. Lamson said that as he understood, this would be a brand-new application request and would go through a 
Public Hearing and Planning Board review.  Ms. Gollnitz said that was correct. Mr. Lamson said that he had visited 



Planning Board Minutes 
February 25, 2020 

 
 

 4 

the site and the seasonal mulch was occupying 20 parking spaces close to the building. He suggested that the local 
store staff be available during the rezoning process and all options be reviewed.  
 
Mr. Lamson motioned to recommend waiving the one year resubmittal period for Home Depot to file a new rezoning 
application within the next 30 to 60 days.  Mr. Clayton seconded and the motion passed six to one with Mr. Foster 
in opposition.    
 
Mr. Lamson said that he felt that Home Depot provides a great resource for the Town but it was not astatically 
pleasing.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Reeve motioned to adjourn and Mr. Clayton seconded. The motion passed unanimously and the meeting 
adjourned at 7:59 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Shana Robertson 
Senior Administrative Specialist/Deputy Town Clerk 



 

 

 
Public Improvement Variance – PCM Holdings, LLC, College Street  

 
TO: Matthews Planning Board Members 
DATE: May 26, 2020 
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Senior Planner 
 
 
Background/Issues: 
 
PCM Holdings, LLC is requesting a Public Improvement Variance for parcel #227-024-47 along College 
Street. The property is zoned R-12 and is being developed by right.  
 
The applicant is seeking to have relief from the 50’ standard road cross section. There is a 65’ unimproved 
public right-of-way along this portion of College Street.  
 
The PCM Holdings, LLC proposes to build a 20’ wide street with no curb nor gutter. They will install a 5’ 
sidewalk along the property and a roadside swale to carry stormwater runoff. The proposed street cross 
section would be compatible with neighborhood streets within proximity of College Street.  

 
Matthews Unified Development Ordinance Section 155.712.A calls for the Planning Board to determine if 
unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties exist that may result from the strict compliance of the 
regulations, and it may recommend approval or denial to the Board of Commissioners.  

 
Planning and Public Works staff met with the developer and are comfortable with the requested 20’ wide 
street, no curb, no gutter and a 5’ wide sidewalk along the proposed 4 lot frontages. 
 
 
Proposed Solution: 
 
Allow the Public Improvement Variance request for installation of 20’ road without curb and gutter and 5’ 
sidewalk along College St. 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
 
 
Staff suggests that the Planning Board review the request and forward a favorable recommendation for 
the Public Improvement Variance as submitted to the Board of Commissioners for final decision.  
 











 

 

 
Agenda Item: Administrative Amendment –Elevation Changes – QuikTrip 

10621 Monroe Rd. 
 
TO:   Town of Matthews Planning Board  
 
FROM: Robert Will, Senior Planner 
 
DATE:  March 17, 2020 
 
Background/Issue:  
 
The QuikTrip located at 10621 Monroe Rd. is requesting an Administrative Amendment to 
change elevations for the store.  The Board of Commissioners approved the rezoning on 
February 10, 2014. 

 
• Elevations originally approved with the rezoning were originally constructed with black 

vertical tile as an accent finish on the front and ends of the store.  See attached existing 
elevation. 

• Due to long term maintenance issues there is a need to cover the tile with a metal panel 
system that has an EIFS finish with a black finish much like the color of the existing tile.  
See attached proposed elevation. 

• Exterior insulation and finish system (EIFS) are a general class of non-load bearing 
building cladding systems that provides exterior walls with an insulated, water-resistant, 
finished surface in an integrated composite material system. 

• No changes have been made to the footprint of the building. 
 
Proposal/Solution 
 
The revised elevations are in reaction to maintenance issues with the existing tile. 
 
Financial Impact 
 
None 
 
Related Town Goal 
 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
Recommended Action 

 
Review, discuss and make a determination if elevation change requests for the QuikTrip 
Store are appropriate. 



SUGGESTED 
STATEMENTS OF CONSISTENCY AND REASONABLENESS 

Final Decisions on Zoning-Related Issues 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT QuikTrip, 10621 Monroe Rd. 
 
 
Matthews Planning Board makes the following 2 conclusions: 
 
1) __X___ The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS CONSISTENT with the policies for 

development as outlined by the Matthews Land Use Plan and Town’s long-range Vision Statements (as specified 
below) 

 
 OR 
 

_____ The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS NOT CONSISTENT with the Matthews 
Land Use Plan and/or other adopted land development policies and plans. 

 
 
(A requested zoning can be found “consistent” and not approved, or found to be “not consistent”, but approved.) 
 
 
 
 
 
2) ___X__ The requested zoning action IS REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

(ex., may be appropriate with specific surrounding land uses; has been shown that it will not create 
significant new traffic beyond area roads’ capacities; creates/increases desirable use in Town.)  

 
There is no significant impact to building façade as the change in building elevations is necessary for the long term  
maintenance of the structure and is in character with the façade that was approved during the rezoning in 2014. 
 
 OR 
 
 _____ The requested zoning action IS NOT REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Reasons given for a zoning request being “reasonable” or “not reasonable” are not subject to judicial review.) 
 
 
Decision Date: May 27, 2020 
 
           TnBd consist&reason 2016 



0Mclntosh 

February 25, 2020 

Rob Will, AICP 
Senior Planner 

Planning & Development 
Town of Matthews 
232 Matthews Station Street 
Matthews, NC 28105 

Re: QuikTrip Store 1028. 

Dear Mr. Will, 

TRANSFORMATIONARCHITECTS 

Please accept this letter as a formal request for an Administrative Amendment to the Conditional Zoning 
approval for the QuikTrip store 1028 located at 10621 M onroe Road. 

The store was originally constructed with black vertical t ile as an accent finish on the front and ends of 
the store. Due to long term maintenance issues we are covering the ti le with a metal panel system that 
has an EIFS finish with a black finish much like the color of t he existing tile. 

The EIFS will provide a similar looking finish that is also durable. 

If you have any questions or need any additional information please feel free to conta ct me at 918-585-
8555 X 322. 

Sincerely, 

The McIntosh Group, LLC 

~~ 
Bruce Horgen, AIA 
Principal 

The McIntosh Group, LLC 1850 S. Boulder Ave, Tulsa, OK 74119 918.585.8555 MclntoshTransforms.com 



C
 

0 

... 

C
 

0 

] w
 a 
. °' 

V
l 

C
: 

0 

0 >
 

(I) 

w
 01 

C
: 

" ·5 m
 

>-
.!::: C

: 
w

 

" Q
) 

0
1

 
C

: 
<t 

0 0 

i8 
" 

0
)
 

cxi 
e

~ 
0 

• 

jS 
·o I 

II 

(
0

 

j~
 

w
 

(/) 
m

 I 
0 0 0 0 I 

.o
 

go 
J; 



,{
\ 

X
 

w
 

C
 

0 

I ,w
 

N
 I 

0
0

 
a

N
 

g 
I 

.~
 

~-V
1

 
tz i== 
(/) 

CD 
I 

N
 

0 



 

 

 

Agenda Item: Administrative Amendment – Matthews United Methodist 
Church - Columbarium 

  
 
TO:   Planning Board  
 
FROM:  Mary Jo Gollnitz, Senior Planner 
 
DATE:  May 27, 2020 
 

 
Background/Issue:  
 
Matthews United Methodist Church is requesting an Administrative Amendment to their approved site plan of 
2001. At that time, the property was rezoned to R/I (CD) (Residential/Institutional Conditional District) showing 
future expansion areas.  

  
Additional information about the changes: 

 
• A “stair step” brick wall will serve as a boundary between the memorial garden and the church. The brick 

wall will be 5’ in height on either end and increase to 7’ in the center.   
 
• A single niche will be against the wall as part of the initial phase of development and a double niche placed 

towards north side of the property. 
 

• Future phases will have a second double niche directly across from initial double niche toward the south. 
The final expansion will include 2 more double niches across from the wall (see attached). 

 
• A fountain in the center of the memorial will be installed, along with walkways from the northwest parking 

lot and within the garden area. 
 
• A metal fence with column partitions will surround 3 sides of the memorial garden. Outside the fence will 

be a mix of boxwood shrugs and flowering camellias to soften the area. 
 
• Additional landscaping will also be installed on the interior of the memorial garden. 
 
• Columbarium are allowed by right in the R/I district under prescribed conditions of Section 155.506.15 of 

Matthews UDO (see attached). Location of proposed memorial garden and columbarium meet the 
requirements.  

 
Matthews UDO provides three levels of approval for Administrative Amendments: staff review, Planning 
Board action and Board of Commissioners action. 
 
If the Planning Board wishes to take action, the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness is provided for 
your convenience. 

 
Recommended Action 

 
Staff recommends the Planning Board review the proposed site change request and approve the addition of a 
memorial garden with columbarium at the Matthews United Methodist Church campus. 



SUGGESTED 
STATEMENTS OF CONSISTENCY AND REASONABLENESS 

Final Decisions on Zoning-Related Issues 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT Matthews United Methodist Church Columbarium & Memorial 
Garden 
 
 
Matthews Planning Board makes the following 2 conclusions: 
 
1) __X___ The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS CONSISTENT with the policies for 

development as outlined by the Matthews Land Use Plan and Town’s long-range Vision Statements (as specified 
below) 

 
 OR 
 

_____ The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS NOT CONSISTENT with the Matthews 
Land Use Plan and/or other adopted land development policies and plans. 

 
 
(A requested zoning can be found “consistent” and not approved, or found to be “not consistent”, but approved.) 
 
 
 
 
 
2) ___X__ The requested zoning action IS REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

(ex., may be appropriate with specific surrounding land uses; has been shown that it will not create 
significant new traffic beyond area roads’ capacities; creates/increases desirable use in Town.)  

 
There is no significant traffic impact to the area and it provides an additional service that is common within religious 
campus facilities. It allows a use that is permitted by right within the Residential/Institutional zoning district. 
 
 
 OR 
 
 _____ The requested zoning action IS NOT REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Reasons given for a zoning request being “reasonable” or “not reasonable” are not subject to judicial review.) 
 
 
Decision Date ___May 27, 2020 
 
           TnBd consist&reason 2016 



TOWN OF MATTHEWS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

Page 5 - 100 

155.506.13 Cemeteries, Mausoleums, Columbarium, and Crematorium.  
A. Private or public cemeteries, as a stand-alone use or in association with a place of worship, may be permitted

in or near residential neighborhoods, in the R-20, R-15, R-12, R-9, R/I, CrC, O, R-VS, SRN, and C-MF
districts, when meeting the following criteria.

B. STANDARDS.
1. Tombstones, monuments, and open wall columbarium must be located at least twenty five feet (25’)

from any side or rear lot line which adjoins lots in a residential area and at least ten feet (10’) from
any side or rear lot line which adjoins all other properties.  In any case, they must be at least forty
feet (40’) from any street right-of-way.

2. Buildings for the maintenance, management, rent, or sale of cemetery lots, burial or remembrance
sites, mausoleums, crypts, and columbarium within enclosed structures must be located at least one
hundred feet (100’) from any lot lines which adjoin lots in a residential area.  Otherwise any such
buildings must conform to the requirements for principal uses in the district where they are located.
[formerly known as § 153.189]

C. CREMATORIUM.
1. Crematorium are allowed per NCGS 90-210.123 (a) and (b) on the same lot as a funeral home or

cemetery, or on a parcel adjacent to a cemetery or funeral home use.
2. When on the same lot as a cemetery in any of the districts listed above at 155.506.13.A.., the

crematorium shall be a minimum of four hundred feet (400’) from any adjacent residential dwelling
unit.

3. When a cemetery is on property zoned one of the districts listed in 155.402.13.A. above, a
crematorium may be located on an adjacent parcel zoned as a commercial or industrial district of B-
1, B-3, B-D, B-H, I-1, I-2, or B-1SCD.

4. Crematorium may be allowed in association with a cemetery or funeral home or as a stand-alone
use in other districts as listed in the Tables of Allowed Uses at 155.505. (Am. Ord. 2188, passed 11-
14-16)













 

The 64 ft. long brick wall will be on the west side of the garden closest to the rear wall of the 

Sanctuary building. 

Rear of Sanctuary 

Brick Wall 










	PB memo 3-24-2020 packet.pdf
	PB memo 3-24-2020
	aa quicktrip application




